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                   OUR VISION 

  

At DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LIMITED, we dedicate our time, effort and experience to strive for 

perfection, quality, innovation and integrity in our work. Our team is dedicated to trade the best 

tiles in the market and be an example brand leader. Meeting our customer satisfaction levels and 

working passionately for a sustainable future is what we do here at DHYAANIINC. 

We toil and endeavour constantly to provide the exceptional service in the marketplace and make 

sure our customers’ dreams and hopes are realized. We will continue to provide unparalleled 

service and be one of India’s finest trading companies. 

 

 

OUR MISSION  

 
To, Perceiving customer needs at utmost level by providing them flexibility in sourcing, competitive 

prices, on‐time deliveries and customized solutions for unique needs & Engage in trade with focus 

on quality services to customers and professional competences. 

We are committed to sustain our reputation as a reliable, customer‐oriented, dynamic player in the 

market,  Achieving  profitable  growth,  operational  and  organizational  excellence  without 

compromising from our values and business ethics. 

We are dedicated to continuously improve our business processes leading to prompt and efficient 

sales and after sales services. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Company Profile 

Our Company is engaged in the business of trading of vitrified tiles used primarily for flooring solutions. 
We commenced this business in year 2019, upon takeover of the business from the earlier promoters. 
Earlier to this the company was engaged in the business of trading of agro commodities. 
 
Our business operations are broadly divided into two product categories: 
 
� Double Charge Vitrified Tiles: Double charge vitrified tiles are tiles that are fed through a press which 
prints  the pattern with a double  layer of pigment, 3  to 4 mm  thicker  than other  types of  tiles. This 
process does not permit complex patterns but results in a long‐wearing tile surface, suitable for heavy 
traffic commercial projects. 
 
� Glazed Vitrified Tiles: Glazed vitrified tiles are flat slabs manufactured from ceramic materials such as 
clay, feldspar and quartz and other additives and fired at high temperatures to ensure high strength and 
low water absorption. These tiles are coated with glaze materials prior to the firing process. 
 
Our Company is promoted by Mr. Chintan Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru. He associated with the Company in 
2020 and at present look after the overall management, day to day affairs and is the guiding force behind 
the  strategic  decisions  of  our  Company. His  industry  knowledge  and  understanding  of  the  current 
market situation enables us to improve our geographic horizon and market presence. We believe that 
we  shall be able  to  create a market position by adhering  to  the  vision of our Promoter and  senior 
management and their experience. 
 
 

OUR LOCATIONAL PRESENCE: 
 

Registered Office: 420 Times Square Arcade, Opp Rambaug, Thaltej‐Shilaj Road, Thaltej Ahmedabad – 
380059, Gujarat, India. 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT 

 

To, 
The Members, 
Dhyaani Tile and Marblez Limited, 
Ahmedabad. 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 8th Annual Report of the Company with the audited 
statements of accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:         
(₹. In Lakhs) 

Particulars For the Year 
2021-22 

For the Year 
2020-21 

Turnover & Other Income 2180.21 1,511.33 
Net Profit before Depreciation & amortization 103.71 36.82 
       Less: Depreciation 0.29 0.29 
Net Profit /Loss Before Extra-Ordinary Item 103.42 36.53 
       Current Tax 26.50 9.57 
Net Profit for the year 76.92 26.96 

 
2. STATE THE COMPANY'S AFFAIRS AND OPERATIONS: 

 
Company is engaged in the business of trading of vitrified tiles used primarily for flooring solutions. 
During the year, your Company had a turnover and earned other income in tune of ₹ 2180.21 lakhs as 
compare to the total revenue of ₹ 1,511.33 lakhs recorded for the previous year and the net profit before 
tax for the current year is ₹ 103.42 lakhs compared to profit of ₹ 36.53 lakhs as recorded in the previous 
year. 
 

3. FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 
 
With reference to the MCA Circular dated May 05, 2022 and SEBI Circular Number 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, the hard copy of annual report containing 
financial statements for the FY 2021-22 and other salient features of all the documents prescribed in 
Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not being sent to the shareholders who have not registered 
their email addresses and the same will be sent to those shareholders who request for the same.  
 
Full version of the Annual Report 2021-22 containing complete Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss, 
other statements and notes thereto, including financial statements, prepared as per the requirements of 
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013, Directors' Report (including Management Discussion & Analysis) 
is being sent via email to all shareholders who have provided their email address(es).  
 
Full version of Financial Report 2021-22 is also available for inspection at the registered office of the 
Company during working hours up to the date of ensuing Annual general meeting (AGM).It is also 
available at the Company`s website (i.e. www.dhyaaniinc.com) 
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4. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 
 
During the year under Report, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company. 
 

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 
The Board of Directors has carried profit of ₹. 76.92 lakhs to reserve account. 
 

6. DIVIDEND: 
 
Your Directors feel it prudent to plough back the profit in the interest of the growth of the Company. 
Keeping in view the requirement of the funds in future, your Directors have not recommended any 
dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 

7. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 
 
There is no dividend declared in the previous year and hence no amount required to transfer to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund. 
 

8. FIXED DEPOSITS: 
 
The Company neither has accepted nor invited any deposit from the public, within the meaning of section 
73 of the Companies, Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder. 
 

9. SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
THE AUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL: 
 
During the Year the Authorised Share Capital of the Company has been increased to Rs.1,60,00,000 
(Ruppes One Crore Sixty Lakhs) divided into 16,00,000 (Sixteen Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 (Ten) from 
Rs. 5,00,000 (Rupees Five Lakhs) divided into 50,000 (Fifty Thousand) Equity share of Rs.10 (Ten) each 
through resolution passed in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on August 12, 2021. 
 
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID-UP CAPITAL: 
 
As on March 31, 2021, the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the company was 5,00,000 divided into 50,000 
Equity Shares of face value of ₹ 10/- each. 
 
The Company has allotted 80,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a price of Rs. 
95/- (Rupees Ninety Five only) per share, including of premium of Rs. 85/- (Rupees Eighty Five Only) per 
share for a total consideration of up to Rs. 76,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Six Lakh Only) to Mr. Chintan 
Nayanbhai Rajyaguru during the year under the Private Placement basis by the existing Shareholders of 
the Company after taking shareholder's approval in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 
September 07, 2021.  
 
The Company has allotted 9,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each during the year under review as Bonus 
share in the ratio of 7 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 1 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by the 
existing Shareholders of the Company after taking shareholder's approval in the Extra-Ordinary General 
Meeting held on January 06, 2022.  
 
Therefore, as on March 31, 2022 the Paid-up Equity Shares of the Company was Rs.1,52,00,000 (One 
Crores Fifty Two Lakhs) divided into 15,20,000 (Fifteen Lakhs Twenty Thousand) of Rs.10 (Ten) each.  
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As on March 31, 2022 the Company has not issued any convertible instruments. 
 

10. LISTING ON BSE –SME PLATFORM: 
 

We are pleased to inform you that the Company has made an Initial Public Offer of 4,80,000 Equity 
Shares of Rs. 10/- each for a consideration of Rs. 51/- per Equity Shares including a share premium of Rs. 
41/-  per equity Shares vide prospectus dated March 25, 2022. The Company has successfully completed 
the Initial Public Offer (IPO) pursuant to the applicable SEBI Rules and Regulations. The issue opening date 
was 31st March, 2022 and the issue closing date was 04th April, 2022. The IPO of the Company received 
great response from the public and the issue was oversubscribed.  
 
The Company got listed with the SME Platform of BSE Limited on 12th April, 2022. The Equity Shares of 
the Company as Listed on SME Platform for BSE Limited are on regular and continuous trading.  
 

11.  MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF THE BOARD REPORT AND END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 
 
The Company got listed with the SME Platform of BSE Limited on 12th April, 2022. The Equity Shares of 
the Company as Listed on SME Platform for BSE Limited are on regular and continuous trading.  
 

12. CHANGE OF NAME OF THE COMPANY: 
 
During the year the name of the Company has been changed to “DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ PRIVATE 
LIMITED” from “DHYANI ENTERPRISE PRIVATE LIMITED”. 
 

13. THE NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT 
VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR: 
 
There are no holding, subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate company of the Company. During the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2022, the performance and financial position of subsidiaries, 
associates and joint ventures as per rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable. 
 

14. DEMATERIALIZATION OF COMPANY'S SHARES: 
 
Your company has provided the facility to its shareholders for dematerialization of their shareholding by 
entering into an agreement with the National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 
 
The ISIN number allotted to the company is INE0K5F01014. 
 

15. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

The Company has a professional Board with right mix of knowledge, skills and expertise with an optimum 
combination of executive, non-executive and independent Directors including one woman Director. The 
Board provides strategic guidance and direction to the Company in achieving its business objectives and 
protecting the interest of the stakeholders. 
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 Composition of Board/KMP as on 31.03.2022: 

 

 

 

Si 
No 

Name  Designation Date of 
Appointment/ 
Change in 
Designation 

Tenure of 
Appointment 

Meeting 

1 Mr. Chintan 
Nayan Bhai 
Rajyaguru (DIN: 
08091654) 

Managing 
Director 

06.01.2022 5 YEARS 
 
(06.01.2022 

to 
05.01.2027) 

EXTRA 
ORDINARY 
GENERAL 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
06.01.2022 

2 Mr. Nayankumar 
Labhshanker 
Rajyaguru (DIN: 
08997548) 

Executive 
Director 

09.08.2021 - ANNNUL 
GENERAL 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
09.08.2021 

3 Mrs. Ilaben 
Nayanbhai 
Rajyaguru (DIN: 
08091655) 

Non – 
Executive 
Director 

09.08.2021 - ANNNUL 
GENERAL 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
09.08.2021 

4 Mr. Paras 
Jivarajbhai 
Viramgama (DIN: 
08637846) upto 
08.06.2022 

Independent 
Director 

15.11.2021  BOARD 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
15.11.2021 

5 Mr. Vishal 
Kantibhai 
Sondagar (DIN: 
09354153) upto 
08.06.2022 

Independent 
Director 

15.11.2021  BOARD 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
15.11.2021 

6 Mr. Keval 
Dipakkumar Dave 
(DIN:  08631601) 
w.e.f 08.06.2022 

Independent 
Director 

08.06.2022  BOARD 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
08.06.2022 

7 Mr. Ashish 
Agarwal 
(06904914) w.e.f 
08.06.2022 

Independent 
Director 

08.06.2022  BOARD 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
08.06.2022 

8 Ms. Foram Ajmeri Company 
Secretary 

24.05.2021 - BOARD 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
24.05.2021 

9 Ms. Alpa 
Thummar 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

15.11.2021  BOARD 
MEETING 
HELD ON 
15.11.2021 
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 All the Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have not disqualified from being appointed a 
director in terms of section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 

16. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:  
 
The Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2020 has done away the 
requirement of attaching extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 to Board’s Report. The annual return in 
Form MGT-7 as required under Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is available on the website of the Company at 
www.dhyaaniinc.com. 
 

17. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTYRE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY 
 
The company does not have and subsidiary, holding or Associate Company. The Company has not come 
into Joint Venture with any other organization. 
 

18. MEETINGS OF BOARD: 
 

Twelve (12) Board Meetings were held, during the financial year 2020-21, details of Board 
Meeting are as under: 
01.04.2021 
 

24.05.2021 10.07.2021 15.07.2021 

29.07.2021 12.08.2021 06.10.2021 18.10.2021 
15.11.2021 13.01.2022 24.01.2022 02.03.2022 
 
 

All the meetings of Board of Directors of the Company are scheduled well in advance and the Board 
meets at least once in a quarter to review the quarterly performance and the financial results. Agenda of 
the meeting were prepared and all necessary papers were circulated to Members of the Board in 
advance. All Members of the Board have access to all information of the Company and are free to 
recommend inclusion of any matter in the Agenda for discussions. 
 

19. BOARD EVALUATION 
 
The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board Committees 
and individual directors based on inputs from the directors. 
 
The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of the individual 
directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the Board and 
committee meetings. Also, the Chairman was also evaluated on the key aspects of his role. 
 
In the separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, 
performance of the board as a whole and performance of the Chairman was evaluated. The same was 
discussed in the Board meeting that followed the meeting of the independent directors, at which the 
performance of the Board, its committee and individual director was also discussed. 
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20. COMMITTEES OF BOARD: 
 
A. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 
 
The Board of Directors has constituted Audit Committee comprising of three directors including two 
Independent Director and all having financial literacy. The committee was constituted on 13.01.2021 
with the following members on the committee: 
 

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in 
Committee 

Mr. Vishal Kantibhai Sondagar Independent Director Chairman 
Mr. Paras Jivarajbhai Viramgama Independent Director Member 
Mr. Chintan Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru Chairman & Managing Director Member 

 
The committee was reconstituted as on 08.06.2022, due to resignation of members of Board of Director. 
Re – constituted committee members as follow: 
 
 

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 
Mr. Keval D. Dave Independent Director Chairman 

Mr. Ashish Agarwal Independent Director Member 
Mr. Chintan Nayan Bhai 
Rajyaguru 

Chairman & Managing Director Member 

 
The Functioning and terms of reference of the Audit Committee the role, powers and duties, quorum for 
meeting and frequency of meetings, have been devised keeping in view the requirements of Section 177 
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
The Board of Directors has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of three 
directors including two Independent Director and one Non-executive director and all having financial 
literacy. 
 
The committee was constituted on 13.01.2021 with the following members on the committee: 
 

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in 
Committee 

Paras Jivarajbhai Viramgama Independent Director Chairman 
Vishal Kantibhai Sondagar Independent Director Member 
Ilaben Nayanbhai Rajyaguru Non-Executive Director Member 

 
The committee was reconstituted as on 08.06.2022, due to resignation of members of Board of Director. 
Re – constituted committee members as follow: 
 

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 
Ashish Agarwa Independent Director Chairman 
Keval D. Dave Independent Director Member 
Ilaben Nayanbhai Rajyaguru Non-Executive Director Member 
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The Functioning and terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the role, 
powers and duties, quorum for meeting and frequency of meetings, have been devised keeping in view 
the requirements of Section 178 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  
 
The Nomination and Remuneration Policy, as adopted by the Board of Directors, is placed on the website 
of the Company at https://www.dhyaaniinc.com/Home/policies_and_programs 
 
C. STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 
The Board of Directors has constituted Stakeholder Relationship Committee comprising of three directors 
including two Independent Director and all directors having financial literacy. 
 
The committee was constituted on 13.01.2021 with the following members on the committee: 
 

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 
Ilaben Nayanbhai Rajyaguru Non-Executive Director Chairperson 
Paras Jivarajbhai Viramgama Independent Director Member 
Vishal Kantibhai Sondagar Independent Director Member 

 
The committee was reconstituted as on 08.06.2022, due to resignation of members of Board of Director. 
Re – constituted committee members as follow: 
 

Name of the Member Nature of Directorship Designation in Committee 
Ilaben Nayanbhai Rajyaguru Non-Executive Director Chairperson 

Keval D. Dave Independent Director Member 
Ashish Agarwal Independent Director Member 

 
21. MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION 
 
As the Company is listed on the Stock Exchange on 12.04.2022, therefore particulars as required under 
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the financial 
year 2021-22 are not applicable to the Company. 
 
22.  COMPANY'S POLICY ON DIRECTOR'S APPOINTMENT, NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND 

FORMAL EVALUATION: 
 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has, on the 
recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy for selection, 
nomination, appointment and remuneration of Directors suitably containing the criteria determining  
qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The policy is attached as Annexure-I to 
the report. 
 
The policy is also uploaded on the Company's website at www.dhyaaniinc.com. 
 

23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the nature & size of business 
of the Company 
 

24. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:  
(Pursuant to Provisions of section 149(6) OF the Companies Act 2013)  
 
All the Independent Directors of the Company do hereby declare that:  
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(1) All the Independent Directors of the Company are neither Managing Director, nor a Whole Time 

Director nor a Manager or a Nominee Director. 
 

(2) All the Independent Directors in the opinion of the Board are persons of integrity and possesses 
relevant expertise and experience.  
 

(3) Who are or were not a Promoter of the Company or its Holding or subsidiary or associate 
Company. 
 

(4) Who are or were not related to promoters or Directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or 
associate Company.  
 

(5) Who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or associate 
company or their promoters or directors, during the two immediately preceding financial years or 
during the current financial Year. 
 

(6) None of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its 
holding, subsidiary, or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per 
cent or more of its gross turnover or total income or fifty lacs rupees or such higher amount as 
may be prescribed, whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or 
during the current financial year, 
 

(7) Who neither himself, nor any of his relatives,  
 

(a) Holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been employee of the 
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of three financial years 
immediately preceding the financial year in which I\he is proposed to be appointed.  
 

(b) Is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial years 
immediately preceding the financial years in which he is proposed to be appointed of 

 
(i) A firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of the company or its 

holding, subsidiary or associate company; OR 
 

(ii) Any legal or a consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company amounting to ten per cent, or more of the gross turnover of 
such firm;  
 

(iii)  Holds together with his relatives two per cent, or more of the total voting power of the 
company; OR  

 
(iv) Is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, or any non-profit organization that 

receives twenty five per cent or more of its receipts from the Company, any of its 
promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate company or that holds two per 
cent or more of the total voting power of the company; OR 
 

(v) Who possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed. 
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25. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
In terms of section 134 Clause (C) of Sub-Section (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to financial 
statements for the year 2021-22, the Board of Directors state: 
 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2022, as far as 
possible and to the extent, if any, accounting standards mentioned by the auditors in their report 
as not complied with, all other applicable accounting standards have been followed along with 
proper explanation relating to material departure; 
 

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and profit and loss account of the 
Company for that period; 
 

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 
 

d) The Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 
 

e) The Directors in the case of a listed company had laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were 
operating effectively. 

 
f) The Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 
 

26. DECLARATION BY BOARD AS PER REQUIREMENT OF SECTION 178 (1)  
 
In compliance with Section 178 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board of Directors do hereby declare 
that: 
 

a. The Company has proper constitution of the Board of Directors including Independent Directors. 
 

b. The Company has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Audit Committee as per requirements of provisions of the Companies 
Act 2013.  
 

c. The Company has the policy for selection and appointment of independent Directors who are 
persons of reputation in the society, have adequate educational qualification, sufficient business 
experience and have integrity & loyalty towards their duties.  
 

d. Company pays managerial remuneration to its Managing/Whole Time Director.  
 

e. The Independent Directors are not paid sitting fee for attending Board and other committee 
meetings held by the Board from time to time.  
 

f. The Company is not paying any commission on net profits to any directors.  
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27. STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 
M/s. J Singh & Associates, Chartered Accountants were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company 
for period of Five years from the conclusion of the 6th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 
11th Annual general Meeting of the Company. 
  
The Report given by the Statutory Auditors on the financial statement for the financial year ending on 31st 
March, 2022 of the Company is part of this Report. There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the 
Auditors’ Report which require any clarification/explanation. The Notes on financial statements are self-
explanatory, if any, and needs no further explanation. 
 

28. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH ARE 
REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT: 
 
The Statutory Auditors of the Company have not reported any frauds to the Audit Committee or to the 
Board of Directors under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules made thereunder. 
 

29. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors appointed CS Kunal 
Bajaj, proprietor of Kunal Bajaj & Associates, (Membership No. 11398, CP No. 16849) to conduct 
Secretarial Audit of the Company for Financial Year 2020-21. The Report of the Secretarial Audit Report is 
set out in an annexure as to this report. 
 
With regard to observations of the Secretarial Auditor for non-compliances of various provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulation, it is stated that the Company is not having major operations 
and the management of the Company is striving hard to operative effectively and taking steps to make 
necessary compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulation. 
 
In connection, with the auditors’ observation in the Secretarial Audit Report, the explanation / 
clarifications of the Board of Directors are as under: 
 
30. DISCLOSURE WHETHER MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL 

GOVERNMENT UNDER SUB-SECTION (1) OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 

Under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Central Government has prescribed maintenance and 
audit of cost records vide the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 to such class of companies 
as mentioned in the Table appended to Rule 3 of the said Rules. The Company does not fall under 
Maintenance and audit of cost records and accordingly maintenance cost records and audit provisions are 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
31. DISCLOSURE ON FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12) OF THE ACT 
 
There were no offences involving an instance of fraud reported by the Auditors of the Company under 
sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act other than those which are reportable to the Central 
Government for the year ended March 31, 2019. 
 
32. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS: 
 
Details of Loan, Guarantee and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
 



             ANNUAL REPORT FOR FY 2021-22 

31 
 

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 
 
All the transactions entered into with related parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Listing Regulation, if any, during the year were on an arm’s length price basis and in the ordinary course 
of business. Such transactions have been approved by the Audit Committee. The Board of Directors of the 
Company has formulated the Policy on Related Party Transactions. 

During the Financial Year 2021-22, the Company did not have any material pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with Non-Executive Directors. In the preparation of financial statements, the Company has 
followed the Accounting Standards. The significant accounting policies which are applied have been set 
out in the Notes to Financial Statements. The Board has received disclosures from Key Managerial 
Personnel, relating to material, financial and commercial transactions where they and/or their relatives 
have personal interest. There are no materially significant related party transactions which have potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large.  

 
34. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 
 
The Company is not dealing in any production/ manufacturing activity; hence this clause is not applicable. 
 
35. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 
 
As per Regulation 15 (2) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Para C of Schedule V relating to Corporate Governance Report, shall not apply to company listed on SME 
Exchange (Also the Company was not listed on any platform as on 31st March, 2022). The Company being 
a company listed on BSE SME Platform, preparation of corporate governance report is not applicable. 
 
36. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: 
 
Pursuant to Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement Regulation, 2015 of the SEBI, Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report are annexed herewith and form part of this Report. 
 
37. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY(CSR) COMMITTEE: 
 
The provisions for Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility 
activities are not applicable to the Company.  
 
38. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM:  
 
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism for 
reporting illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has adopted a Whistle-Blower Policy/ Vigil 
mechanism, which provides a formal mechanism for all employees of the Company to make protected 
disclosures to the Management about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the 
Company’s Code of Conduct. Disclosures reported are addressed in the manner and within the time 
frames prescribed in the Policy. During the year under review, no employee of the Company has been 
denied access to the Audit Committee. 
 
39. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING: 
 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors of the Company met on 31.03.2022, inter alia to 
discuss:  
 

i) Evaluation of Performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors of the 
Company as a whole. 
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ii) Evaluation of performance of the Chairman and / or Managing Director of the Company, taking 
into views of Executive and Non-executive Directors. 

iii) Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the Management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties. 

 
 
40. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
 
The Board reviews the risks associated with the Company every year while considering the business plan. 
Considering the size of the Company and its activities, it is felt that the development and implementation 
of a Risk management policy is not relevant to the Company and in the opinion of the Board there are no 
risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. 
 
41. IND AS 
 
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act. 
 
42. SECRETARIAL STANDRAD OF ICSI 
 
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the 
Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. 
 
43. SHARES  

 
A. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES   

The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 
 

B. SWEAT EQUITY  
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. 
 

C. PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT: 
The Company has allotted 80,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each for cash at a 
price of Rs. 95/- (Rupees Ninety Five only) per share, including of premium of Rs. 85/- 
(Rupees JEy Five Only) per share for a total consideration of up to Rs. 76,00,000/- (Rupees 
Seventy Six Lakh Only) to Mr. Chintan Nayan bhai Rajyaguru during the year under the 
Private Placement basis by the existing Shareholders of the Company after taking 
shareholder's approval in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on September 07, 2021.  
 

D. BONUS SHARES  
 

The Company has allotted 9,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each during the year under 
review as Bonus share in the ratio of 7 equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every 1 Equity 
shares of Rs. 10 each held by the existing Shareholders of the Company after taking 
shareholder's approval in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on January 06, 2022.  
 

E. EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION PLAN 
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees. 
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44. SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY: 
 
The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirements of the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An 
Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
 
During the year 2021-22, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual harassment. 
 
45. APPRECIATION: 
 
Your Directors wish to place on record their sincere appreciation and gratitude for the valuable support 
and co-operation received from the Customers and Suppliers, various Financial Institutions, Banks, 
Government Authorities, Auditors and Shareholders during the year under review. Your Directors wish to 
place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the devoted services of the Executives, Staff and 
Workers of the Company for its success. 
 
FOR ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD  
DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LIMITED 
 
 
      Sd/-                                                     Sd/- 
 
CHINTAN NAYAN BHAI RAJYAUGUR                  NAYANKUMAR L RAJYAGURU 
MANAGING DIRECTOR                DIRECTOR 
DIN: 08091654     DIN: 08997548 
 
Date: 08/09/2022      
Place: Ahmedabad 
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Annexure I 

 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KMPS AND OTHER EMPLOYEES 

 

This Nomination and Remuneration Policy is being formulated in compliance with Section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read along with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
as amended from time to time. This policy on Nomination and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 
Personnel and Senior Management has been formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee (NRC or the Committee) and has been approved by the Board of Directors in its duly held 
board meeting dated 15th November 2021. 

Our Policy on the Appointment  and Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management Personnel provides a framework based on which our human resources management aligns 
their recruitment plans for strategic growth of the Company. 

 

DEFINITIONS: 

“Act” means Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under, as amended from time to time. 

“Board of Directors” or Board, in relation to the company, means the collective body of the Directors of 
the Company. 

“Committee” means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as constituted or 
reconstituted by the Board. 

“Company” means “Dhyaani Tile And Marblez Limited” 

“Managerial Personnel” means Managerial Personnel or Persons, applicable under Section 196 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

“Policy” or “This policy” means Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 

“Remuneration” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered 
by him and includes perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961; 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means an individual as defined under Section 2(51) and Section 203 of 
Companies act, 2013: 

i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

ii) the Company Secretary; 

iii) the Whole Time Director; 

iv) the Chief Financial Officer; 

v) such other officer, not more than one level below the directors who is in the whole-time 
employment, designated as key managerial personnel by the Board; and 

vi) such other person as may be prescribed by the Company from time to time.  

“Senior Managerial Personnel” mean officers/ personnel of the listed entity who are members of its 
core management team excluding the Board of Directors and normally this shall comprise all members 
of management one level below the chief executive director/managing director/whole time 
director/manager (including chief executive officer/manager, in case they are not part of the board) 
and shall specifically include company secretary and chief financial officer.  
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PURPOSE: 

Pursuant to the Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of 
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and pursuant to the applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, the Board of Directors shall constitute the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, to guide the 
Board on various issues on appointment, evaluate the performance, remuneration of Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, etc.  

 

CONSTITUTION OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The Board has constituted the “Nomination and Remuneration Committee” of the Board on 15th 
November 2021. This is in line with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

APPLICABILITY: 

This Policy is applicable to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Managerial Personnel and 
such other officer as may be prescribed by the Board of the Company. 

 

OBJECTIVE: 

The objective of the Policy is to ensure that: 

- The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and 
motivate Directors of the quality required to run the Company successfully; 

- Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance 
benchmarks; and; 

- Remuneration to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management involves a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate 
to the working of the Company and its goals.  

 

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE:  

The role of the NRC will be the following: 

- To formulate criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
Director.  

- To formulate criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board. 

- To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior 
Management in accordance with the criteria laid down in this Policy. 

- To carry out evaluation of Director’s performance. 

- To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management. 

- To recommend to the Board, Policy relating to remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
and Senior Management. 

- To specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board, its committees and 
Individual Directors to be carried out by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
or by independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance. 

- To devise a policy on Board diversity, composition, size.  

- Succession planning for replacing Key Executives and overseeing.  
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- To carry out any other function as is mandated by the Board from time to time and/ or enforced by 
any statutory notification, amendment or modification, as may be applicable.  

- To perform such other functions as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 
duties. 

 

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT 

1) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of 
the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend his/ 
her appointment, as per Company’s Policy.  

2) A person should possess adequate qualification, expertise and experience for the position he/ she is 
considered for appointment. The Committee has authority to decide whether qualification, expertise 
and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory for the position.  

3) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Whole-time Director 
who has attained the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding this position 
may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with the approval of shareholders by passing a 
special resolution. 

 

TERM / TENURE  

1) Chairman/ Managing Director/Whole-time Director: The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any 
person as its Executive Chairman, Managing Director or Executive Director for a term not exceeding 
five years at a time under the terms of the applicable provisions of the law. No re-appointment shall 
be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term. 

2) Independent Director: An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive 
years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special 
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board's report. 

3) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto maximum of 
5 years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for appointment after expiry of three 
years of ceasing to become an Independent Director.  

Provided that an Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years, be appointed 
in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either directly or indirectly.  

At the time of appointment of Independent Director it should be ensured that number of Boards on 
which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed companies as an Independent 
Director and three listed companies as an Independent Director in case such person is serving as a 
Whole-time Director of a listed company or such other number as may be prescribed under the Act. 

 

EVALUATION 

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel yearly or at such intervals as may be considered necessary.  

 

REMOVAL  

The Committee may recommend with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior 
Management Personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, rules and 
regulations and the policy of the Company.  
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RETIREMENT  

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of the 
Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion to retain the Director, 
KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position/ remuneration or otherwise even after 
attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

 

POLICY FOR REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS/KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

 1) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors:  

a) The Remuneration/ Commission etc. to be paid to Managing Director/ Whole-time Directors, etc. 
shall be governed as per the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made 
there under or any other enactment for the time being in force and the requisite approvals 
obtained from the Members of the Company and from other concerned authorities, if required as 
per the applicable provisions. 

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall make such recommendations to the Board of 
Directors, as it may consider appropriate with regard to remuneration to Managing Director/ 
Whole-time Directors.  

2) Remuneration to Non- Executive/ Independent Directors:  

a) The Non-Executive/ Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and such other remuneration as 
permissible under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013. The amount of sitting fees shall be such 
as may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be. 

 b) All the remuneration of the Non-Executive/ Independent Directors (excluding remuneration for 
attending meetings as prescribed under Section 197 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013) shall be 
subject to ceiling/ limits as provided under Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under or any 
other enactment for the time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as 
may be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the 
Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.  

c) An Independent Director shall not be eligible to get Stock Options and also shall not be eligible to 
participate in any share based payment schemes of the Company. 

d) Any remuneration paid to Non-Executive/ Independent Directors for services rendered which are of 
professional in nature shall not be considered as part of the remuneration for the purposes of 
clause (b) above if the following conditions are satisfied: 

 i) The services are rendered by such Director in his capacity as the professional; and 

ii) In the opinion of the Committee, the Director possesses the requisite qualification for the 
practice of that profession.  

e) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of 
administering the Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options 
and other share based payments to be made to Directors (other than Independent Directors).  

3) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management:  

a) The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management shall consist of fixed pay 
and incentive any, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and in accordance 
with the Company’s Policy and subject to the compliance w.r.t. SEBI LODR Regulations, to the 
extent it is applicable to the Company.  

b) The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company, constituted for the purpose of 
administering the Employee Stock Option/ Purchase Schemes, shall determine the stock options 
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and other share based payments to be made to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management. 

 c) The Fixed pay shall include monthly remuneration, employer’s contribution to Provident Fund, 
contribution to pension fund, pension schemes, etc. as decided from to time. 

 d) The Incentive pay shall be decided based on the balance between performance of the Company 
and performance of the Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management, to be decided annually 
or at such intervals as may be considered appropriate.  

 

DISCLOSURE 

Certified copy of this Policy shall be placed on Company’s website viz., www.dhyaaniinc.com for public 
view and silent features of this Policy and any changes therein, shall be disclosed in the Board’s report 
along web address of this policy. 

 

IMPLEMENTATION 

- The Committee may issue guidelines, procedures, formats, reporting mechanism and manuals in 
supplement and for better implementation of this policy as considered appropriate.  

- The Committee may delegate any of its powers to one or more of its members. 

 

AMENDMENT TO THE POLICY: 

The Board of Directors on its own and/ or as per the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee can amend this Policy, as and when required. In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), 
circular(s), etc. issued by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with the provisions of this Policy, 
which are extracted from applicable provisions of Companies Act and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, then 
such amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s), etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and this 
Policy shall stand amended accordingly from the effective date as laid down under such amendment(s), 
clarification(s), circular(s), etc. However, to bring the effects of such amendment(s), clarification(s), 
circular(s), etc. Committee may recommend such changes in this Policy to the Board for the approval in 
the meeting of the Board of Directors. 
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Annexure II 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW:  
 
India’s gross domestic product (GDP) at current prices stood at ₹ 51.23 lakh crore (US$ 694.93 billion) in 
the first quarter of FY22, as per the provisional estimates of gross domestic product for the first quarter 
of 2021-22.  
 
India needs to increase its rate of employment growth and create 90 million non-farm jobs between 2023 
and 2030's, for productivity and economic growth according to McKinsey Global Institute. Net 
employment rate needs to grow by 1.5% per year from 2023 to 2030 to achieve 8-8.5% GDP growth 
between 2023 and 2030.  
 
According to data from the Department of Economic Affairs, as of August 27, 2021, foreign exchange 
reserves in India reached US$ 633.5 billion mark. 
 
GLOBAL TILES INDUSTRY  
 
Tiles, today, have become an essential element of the construction industry. They are used in commercial 
space, residential complexes and high-footfall areas. In high footfall areas (commercial and retail), tiles 
are preferred for their appeal, their strength, life and the convenience of seamless maintenance.  
 
The global ceramic tiles market has witnessed a period of constant growth over the last 10 years driven 
by - the rising demand for ceramic tiles in buildings and construction; rapid development of residential 
and commercial buildings due to population growth, increasing urbanisation and rise of per capita 
income; along with technological advancements in this sector that have fuelled product innovation and 
cost efficiencies.  
 
The biggest contraction was again Asia, where demand fell to 7,995 million sqm (-6.3).  
 
The global ceramic tiles market is projected to grow at US$ 207.7 billion in 2020. It is expected to reach 
US$ 285.1 billion by 2025, growing at a CAGR of 6.5% 
 
Population growth, rising disposable income, growth in renovation and remodelling activities, and 
increasing investments in residential and commercial sectors have fuelled growth for the market.  
 
The residential and construction segment is the key market for ceramic tiles and is expected to be the 
fastest growing end-use sector for the tiles from 2020 to 2025. In terms of value and volume, the demand 
for ceramic tiles in the Asia-Pacific region is expected to be the highest during the period from 2020 to 
2025. Rising number of new housing units and increasing investments in the infrastructure sector are 
contributing to the rise in demand. 
 
GROWTH DRIVERS OF THE INDIAN TILES INDUSTRY 
 
1. Reverse migration has been a major trend that has pushed up demand considerably for homes across 
Indian Tier II and Tier III cities along with factors like ready availability of bigger spaces, lower 
construction costs, and enhanced value for money in terms of property prices. 
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2. The Government had announced the creation of 100 additional airports in India by 2024; majority of 
these airports are to be located in Tier I and II cities with an objective of strengthening connectivity. 
Majority of these airport projects are yet to be initiated. Also, large expansions have also been planned 
(some initiated) for India’s premier airports in New Delhi, Hyderabad, Mumbai and Kolkata. 
 
OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 
Tiles industry remains highly fragmented. Over the years, high indirect tax incidence, liberal tax 
administration/monitoring and a short B2C supply chain have led the industry to remain dominated by 
unorganized players, which account for 51% of value and 60% of volume for the industry. 
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 
The Company is identifying the various opportunities available with the Company. Looking at the overall 
scenario of the economic conditions, the company is planning for the maximum utilization of the 
available resources. The Company expects in raising the demands of the products in which the company 
is engaged. Thus, the Overall outlook for the coming year looks good and may benefit your company at 
large. 
 
India is one of the fastest-growing ceramic tile marketplaces at the global level. Some of the major factors 
augmenting the growth of the ceramic tiles demand in India are the growing real estate sector coupled 
with government policies fueling strong growth in the housing sector. In addition, rising disposable 
income in India and a corresponding desire for beautification of living and working spaces are also driving 
the need for ceramic tiles in the country. Demand for products like the new touchless and other hygiene-
centric products in bath ware and the germ-free tiles will take center stage and will see traction in the 
forecast period. The government schemes such as ‘Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana’ and ‘Smart Cities, 
among others, are likely to provide a further impetus to the real estate market in India. 
 
RISKS AND CONCERNS 
 
The risk associated with the products of the Company is always a cause of concern for the Company. The 
general risk associated with the competition from large organization as well as from the unorganized and 
small-scale organizations affects the domestic market to a large extent. Your company is confident of 
performing better in spite of such business risks. 
 
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS 
 
The Company does not have any formal internal audit system. The internal policies of the Company 
ensure efficient use and protection of assets and resources, compliance with policies and reliability of the 
financial and operational reports. The management is taking steps to introduce the internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of the business of the company. The Audit Committee of the 
Board of Directors deals with the adequacy of internal controls and budgeting functions. 
 
FINANCIAL PERFOMANCE 
 
The Company’s performance was satisfactory during the year 2021-22.  
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The Company continued to have cordial and harmonious relations with its employees during the year 
under review. 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statement in this Management Discussion and Analysis report describing the Company’s objective, 
expectations or predictions may be “forward – looking statements” within the meaning of applicable 
securities laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied. 
Important factors that could make a difference to the Company’s operations include economic conditions 
affecting demand / supply and price conditions in the domestic and overseas markets, changes. 
 

 

 



                             ANNUAL REPORT FOR FY 2021-22  

 
FORM MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

The Members, 
DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LIMITED 
420 Time Square Arcade Opp Rambaug  
Nr Rajiv Plaza Thaltej-Shilaj Road,  
Thaltej Ahmedabad 380059 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Dhyaani Tile and Marblez Limited (CIN: 
U51900GJ2014PLC081004) (hereinafter called "the Company"). The Company is an SME-listed 
company at Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE SME). An audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conduct of statutory compliance 
and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the 
secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022, 
according to the provisions of: 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made thereunder; 
 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made 
thereunder; 

 
iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 
iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, there being no Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
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(i) The following Regulations and Guidelines are prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :- 

 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulation, 2015; Not Applicable for the period under review. 
 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable for the period under review. 
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 

2015; Not Applicable for the period under review. 
 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2018;  
 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with clients. 
 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the 
company has complied with the Secretarial Standards to the extent possible; 

 
b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable for the period under review. 
 

(ii) There are no laws that are specifically applicable to the company based on their 
sector/industry. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of Acts, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except the below – 

1. The company’s CIN is not updated with Registrar of Companies, Ahmedabad after listing 
of Equity Shares at Bombay Stock Exchange on April 12, 2022. 

We further report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with the proper balance of the 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking 
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and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

The majority decision is carried unanimously while the dissenting members' views if any, are 
captured and recorded as part of the Minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, and guidelines. 

Note: Our appointment was made by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on 
08.09.2022. Further, due to COVID-19 for a significant part of the year under review, the 
secretarial audit and the Certification on this Form MR-3 have been done on basis of the 
documents made available to us in the electronic form by the Secretarial Team of the 
Company and verification and validation is in progress. 

For KUNAL BAJAJ & ASSCOIATES, 

Company Secretaries                          

 

Sd/- 
Proprietor  

FCS No: 11398 Place: Ahmedabad UDIN:F011398D000951084 

COP No: 16849 Date: 09/09/2022    

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A' 
and forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure A 

To, 
DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LIMITED 
420 Time Square Arcade Opp Rambaug  
Nr Rajiv Plaza Thaltej-Shilaj Road,  
Thaltej Ahmedabad 380059 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1) The maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 

 
2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 
The verification was done on a test basis to ensure those correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 

of Accounts of the Company have also compliance of Tax Laws. 
 
4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and the happening of events etc. 
 
5) Compliance with the provisions of corporate laws, rules, regulations, and standards is the 

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on a test basis. 

 
6) As regard the books, papers, forms, reports, and returns filed by the Company under the 

provisions referred to in our Secretarial Audit Report in Form No. MR-3 the adherence 
and compliance to the requirements of the said regulations is the responsibility of 
management. Our examination was limited to checking the execution and timeliness of 
the filing of various forms, reports, returns, and documents that need to be filed by the 
Company with various authorities under the said regulations. We have not verified the 
correctness and coverage of the contents of such forms, reports, returns, and 
documents. 
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7) The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted 
the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

For Kunal Bajaj & Associates 

Company Secretaries                           

 

Sd/- 
Proprietor  
 

Place: Ahmedabad 
Date: 09/09/2022 
 
FCS No: 11398 
CP No: 16849 
UDIN: F011398D000951084 

 

 

 
    

 

 

 

 



 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 

TO THE MEMBERS OF DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD 

 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD 

(“the Company”), which comprise  the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,  the Statement of 

Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and 

the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial 

statements”). 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid  financial statements give  the  information  required by  the Companies Act, 2013 

(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 

Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian 

Accounting  Standards)  Rules,  2015,  as  amended,  (“Ind  AS”)  and  other  accounting  principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the profit 

and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 

date. 

 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are 

further  described  in  the  Auditor’s  Responsibilities  for  the  Audit  of  the  Financial  Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 

the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 

accordance with  these requirements and  the  ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe  that  the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 

on the financial statements. 

 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance 

in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in 

the  context  of  our  audit  of  the  financial  statements  as  a  whole,  and  in  forming  our  opinion 

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

 

 

 



Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors  is responsible for the preparation of the other  information. 

The other  information comprises the  information  included  in the Management Discussion and 

Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, 

Corporate  Governance  and  Shareholder’s  Information,  but  does  not  include  the  financial 

statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other  information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with  the  financial  statements  or  our  knowledge  obtained  during  the  course  of  our  audit  or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 

this other  information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report  in this 

regard. 

 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 

Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of 

the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and 

cash  flows  of  the  Company  in  accordance  with  the  Ind  AS  and  other  accounting  principles 

generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 

and  for  preventing  and  detecting  frauds  and  other  irregularities;  selection  and  application  of 

appropriate  accounting  policies;  making  judgments  and  estimates  that  are  reasonable  and 

prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 

that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true 

and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 

whole  are  free  from  material  misstatement,  whether  due  to  fraud  or  error,  and  to  issue  an 

auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 



misstatement when  it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As  part  of  an  audit  in  accordance  with  SAs,  we  exercise  professional  judgment  and  maintain 

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due  to  fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures  responsive  to  those  risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

risk  of  not  detecting  a  material  misstatement  resulting  from  fraud  is  higher  than  for  one 

resulting  from  error,  as  fraud  may  involve  collusion,  forgery,  intentional  omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, 

we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 

internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Conclude  on  the  appropriateness  of  management’s  use  of  the  going  concern  basis  of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements 

or,  if such disclosures are  inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 

the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including 

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 

aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of 

the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 

(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

 

We  communicate  with  those  charged  with  governance  regarding,  among  other  matters,  the 

planned scope and  timing of  the audit and significant audit  findings,  including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 

relevant  ethical  requirements  regarding  independence,  and  to  communicate  with  them  all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 

and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 

From  the  matters  communicated  with  those  charged  with  governance,  we  determine  those 

matters that were of most significance  in the audit of the  financial statements of the current 



period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare 

circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 

the adverse consequences of doing so would  reasonably be expected  to outweigh  the public 

interest benefits of such communication. 

 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As  required  by  the  Companies  (Auditor’s  Report)  Order,  2020  (“the  Order”)  issued  by  the 

Central  Government  in  terms  of  Section  143(11)  of  the  Act,  we  give  in  “Annexure  A”  a 

statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c. The  Balance  Sheet,  the  Statement  of  Profit  and  Loss  including  Other  Comprehensive 

Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 

2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 

March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of 

the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report 

in  “Annexure  B”.  Our  report  expresses  an  unmodified  opinion  on  the  adequacy  and 

operating  effectiveness  of  the  Company’s  internal  financial  controls  over  financial 

reporting. 

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

the requirements of section 197 of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to  us,  the  remuneration  paid  by  the  Company  to  its  directors  during  the  year  is  in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and 

to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us : 

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impacts its financial 

position in its financial statements; 

ii. The Company did not have any long‐term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

iii. There has been no delay  in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv.  

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds have been advanced or  loaned or  invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other  person  or  entity,  including  foreign  entities  (“Intermediaries”),  with  the 



understanding,  whether  recorded  in  writing  or  otherwise,  that  the  Intermediary 
shall,  whether,  directly  or  indirectly  lend  or  invest  in  other  persons  or  entities 
identified  in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of  the company  (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”)  or  provide  any  guarantee,  security  or  the  like  on  behalf  of  the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds  have  been  received  by  the  company  from  any  person  or  entity,  including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded  in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest  in other persons or entities  identified  in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf  of  the  Funding  Party  (“Ultimate  Beneficiaries”)  or  provide  any  guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and  appropriate  in  the  circumstances,  nothing  has  come  to  our  notice  that  has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub‐clause (a) and (b) contain
any material misstatement.

v. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contravention

of the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.

For J SINGH & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg. No.: 110266W 

(CA AMITKUMAR JOSHI) 

Partner 

M. No.: 120022

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 09/06/2022 

UDIN: 22120022AKQDQH7864 



 

ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
(Referred to in Para 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report 
of even date) 
 

I. In respect Paragraph 3(i) of the Order for Property, Plant and Equipment: 
(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment. 
(b) The  Property,  Plant  and  Equipment  of  the  Company  are  physically  verified  by  the 

management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such 
verification.  In  our  opinion  the  periodicity  of  the  physical  verifications  are  reasonable 
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 

(c) According to the  information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have 
immovable property. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order  is not applicable on the 
Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued 
its Property, Plant and Equipment  (including Right of Use assets) or  intangible assets or 
both during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable on the 
Company. 

(e) According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  no  proceedings  have  been 
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the 
Benami  Transactions  (Prohibition)  Act,  1988  (45  of  1988)  and  rules  made  thereunder. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
II. In respect Paragraph 3(ii) of the Order for Inventories: 

The Company does not hold any  inventory within the meaning of  inventories, as defined  in 
Accounting Standard ‐2. So in our opinion, Paragraph 3(ii) of the order is not applicable to the 
Company. 
 

III. In respect Paragraph 3(iii) of the Order: 
(a) During the year under consideration the Company has not has made investments in, provided 

any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or 
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, 
paragraphs 3(iii)(a)(a), 3(iii)(a)(b), 3(iii)(a)(c), 3(iii)(a)(d), 3(iii)(a)(e) and 3(iii)(a)(f) of the Order 
are not applicable on the Company. 

(b) The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or loans or advances in the nature of 
loans or has not made any investment during the year under consideration.  

(c) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of loans. Thus, paragraph 
3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d), 3(iii)(e) and 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

 
IV. The Company has inter corporate investments, within the limit prescribed under section 186 of the 

Act, but has not provided any loans, guarantees and securities during the year. Further provision of 
section 185 of the Act is not applicable to the Company during the year under review. 

 
V. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of 

the Order is not applicable on the Company. 
 

VI. The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) 
of the Act for any of the goods or services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 
 

VII. In respect of Paragraph 3(vii) for statutory dues: 



(a) According to the records of the Company, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 
Services Tax, provident  fund, employees’ state  insurance,  income‐tax, sales  tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues 
have been generally regularly deposited to the appropriate authorities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable  in respect of 
the aforesaid dues were outstanding as on last day of the financial year concerned for a 
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.  
 

(b) There are no dues  in respect of  income‐tax, sales‐tax, service tax or duty of customs or 
duty of excise or value added tax or GST that have not been deposited with the appropriate 
authorities on account of any dispute. 
 

VIII. According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  there  are  no  such  transactions 
which have not been recorded in the books of account and have been surrendered or disclosed 
as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 
Kindly refer Note No. 26 of the Financial Statements. 
 

IX. In respect of Paragraph 3(ix): 
(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted 

in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any 
lender. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable on 
the Company. 

(b) According  to  the  information and explanations given  to us,  the company has not been 
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. Accordingly, 
the provision of paragraph 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any 
term  loan from any bank or financial  institution or others. Accordingly, the provision of 
paragraph 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, no such instances have been 
noticed  wherein  funds  raised  on  short  term  basis  have  been  utilized  for  long  term 
purposes. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. 

(f) According to the  information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised 
loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies. 
 

X. In respect of Paragraph 3(x): 
(a) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 

convertible  debentures  (fully,  partially  or  optionally  convertible)  during  the  year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 

 
XI. In respect of Paragraph 3(xi): 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or 
any material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year. 

(b) No report under sub‐section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by 
the auditors in Form ADT‐4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, no whistle‐blower complaints 
have been received by the company during the year. 
 



XII. The  Company  is  not  a  Nidhi  Company.  Accordingly,  paragraph  3(xii)  of  The  Order  is  not 
applicable on the Company. 
 

XIII. According to the  information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of 
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with the 
provision of section 177 & 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions 
have  been  disclosed  in  the  notes  to  financial  statements  as  required  by  the  applicable 
accounting standards. 
 

XIV. According  to  the  information  and  explanations  given  to  us,  the  company  did  not  have  an 
internal audit system for the period under audit as the same was not required considering the 
size and nature of business and the same was not mandatory in terms of Section 138 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 

XV. According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered into 
any non‐cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with him, so the provisions 
of section 192 of the Act is not required to be complied with. 
 

XVI. In respect of Paragraph 3(xvi): 
(a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45‐IA of the Reserve Bank of India 

Act, 1934. 
(b) The  company  has  not  conducted  any  Non‐Banking  Financial  or  Housing  Finance  activities 

during the year. 
(c) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by 

the Reserve Bank of India. 
(d) The Group has no CIC as part of the Group. 

 
XVII. The  Company  has  not  incurred  cash  losses  in  the  financial  year  under  review  and  in  the 

immediately  preceding  financial  year.  Accordingly,  paragraph  3(xvii)  of  the  Order  is  not 
applicable on the Company. 
 

XVIII. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable on the Company. 
 

XIX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no 
material  uncertainty  exists  as  on  the  date  of  the  audit  report  that  company  is  capable  of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due. 
 

XX. Section  135  of  the  Act  related  to  Corporate  Social  Responsibility  is  not  applicable  on  the 
company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order  is not applicable on the 
Company. 

 
 
 



XXI. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture and hence not required 
to prepare a Consolidated Financial Statement. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order  is 
not applicable on the Company. 

 
 
For J SINGH & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                           

Firm Reg. No.: 110266W 

CA AMITKUMAR JOSHI 

Partner 

M. No: 120022 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 09/06/2022 

UDIN:    



ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
Report  on  the  Internal  Financial  Controls  under  Clause  (i)  of  Sub‐section  3  of  Section  143  of  the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

We  have  audited  the  internal  financial  controls  over  financial  reporting  of  DHYAANI  TILE  AND 

MARBLEZ LTD (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The  Board  of  Directors  of  the  Company  is  responsible  for  establishing  and  maintaining  internal 

financial controls based on the  internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls  over  Financial  Reporting  issued  by  the  Institute  of  Chartered 

Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 

adequate  internal  financial  controls  that  were  operating  effectively  for  ensuring  the  orderly  and 

efficient  conduct  of  its  business,  including  adherence  to  respective  company’s  policies,  the 

safeguarding  of  its  assets,  the  prevention  and  detection  of  frauds  and  errors,  the  accuracy  and 

completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, 

as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting 

of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note 

on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 

143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan 

and perform  the audit  to obtain  reasonable assurance about whether adequate  internal  financial 

controls  over  financial  reporting  was  established  and  maintained  and  if  such  controls  operated 

effectively in all material respects. 
 

Our  audit  involves  performing  procedures  to  obtain  audit  evidence  about  the  adequacy  of  the 

internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit 

of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls over  financial  reporting, assessing  the  risk  that a material weakness exists,  and 

testing  and  evaluating  the  design  and  operating  effectiveness  of  internal  control  based  on  the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 

of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for  our  audit  opinion  on  the  internal  financial  controls  system  over  financial  reporting  of  the 

Company. 

 

 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A  company’s  internal  financial  control  over  financial  reporting  is  a  process  designed  to  provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements  for  external  purposes  in  accordance  with  generally  accepted  accounting  principles.  A 



company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 

that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 

transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 

with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 

are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; 

and  (3)  provide  reasonable  assurance  regarding  prevention  or  timely  detection  of  unauthorised 

acquisition,  use,  or  disposition  of  the  company’s  assets  that  could  have  a  material  effect  on  the 

financial statements. 

 

 

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the  inherent  limitations of  internal financial controls over financial reporting,  including 

the possibility of collusion or  improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due  to  error  or  fraud  may  occur  and  not  be  detected.  Also,  projections of  any evaluation  of  the 

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 

internal  financial  control  over  financial  reporting may  become  inadequate  because  of  changes  in 

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

Opinion 

In our opinion,  to  the best of our  information and according  to  the explanations given  to us,  the 

Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 

March 31, 2022, based on  the  internal control over  financial  reporting criteria established by  the 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

Audit  of  Internal  Financial  Controls  Over  Financial  Reporting  issued  by  the  Institute  of  Chartered 

Accountants of India. 

 

For J SINGH & ASSOCIATES 

Chartered Accountants                                                                                                                           

Firm Reg. No.: 110266W 

    

(CA AMITKUMAR JOSHI) 

Partner 

M. No.: 120022 

 

Place: Ahmedabad 

Date: 09/06/2022   

UDIN: 22120022AKQDQH7864 



 As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 
 (Rs.)  (Rs.) 

ASSETS

Non-current assets :
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 723.77                               -                               
(b) Financial Assets

(i)  Investments 3(a) -                                    -                               
(ii) Loans 3(b) -                                    -                               

(c) Deferred tax assets (net) 4 -                                    -                               
(j) Other non-current assets 12 345.80                               65.00                            

Current assets :
(a) Financial Assets

(i)  Trade receivables 3(c) 1,08,826.74                       60,678.83                     
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 3(d) 16,468.29                          65.93                            

(b) Other current assets 5 24,740.67                          2,954.65                       

Total Assets :: 1,51,105.26                      63,764.42                    

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity :

(a) Equity Share capital 6(a) 10,400.00                          500.00                          
(b) Other Equity 6(b) 8,424.44                            3,032.02                      

LIABILITIES
Non Current liabilities :

(a) Loan 6(c) -                                    -                               
(b) Provisions 6(d) 2,786.00                            696.00                          
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 4 -                                    -                               

Current liabilities :
(a)  Trade Payable

 Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
small enterprises and micro enterprises. 7(a) 46,128.13                          57,884.94                     

(b) Other current liabilities 7(b) 83,366.70                          1,651.45                       

Total Equity and Liabilities :: 1,51,105.26                      63,764.42                    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For, J SINGH & ASSOCIATES On Behalf of Board of Director

Chartered Accountants DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD

Firm Regd. No 110266W CIN - U51900GJ2014PTC081004

CA Amitkumar Joshi Chintan Nayan bhai Rajyagura Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru

Partner Director Director

M.N. 120022 DIN - 08091654 DIN - 08997548

UDIN: 22120022AKQDQH7864

Alpaben Bhabubhai Thummar Foram Ajmeri

CFO Company Secretary

Date: 09/06/2022 Date: 09/06/2022

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD
CIN :U51900GJ2014PLC081004

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022
(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars  Note 
No. 



Particulars Note 
No.  As at 31.03.2022  As at 31.03.2021 

(Rs.) (Rs.)

I Revenue From operations 8                        2,02,582.97                    1,45,752.94 

II Other Income 9                           15,438.62                         5,380.60 

III Total Income (l+ll)                      2,18,021.60                  1,51,133.54 

IV EXPENSES

Purchase                        2,01,620.16                    1,45,031.52 

Employee benefits expense 10(a)                            2,737.40                         1,632.00 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 10(b)                                      -                                     -   

Other expenses 11                            3,320.45                            734.60 

Finance costs                                   1.17                                   -   

Total expenses (lV)                      2,07,679.18                  1,47,398.12 

V Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax                          (I-IV)                         10,342.41                       3,735.42 

VI Exceptional Items                                      -                                     -   

VII Profit/ (loss) before exceptions items and tax                         (V-VI)                         10,342.41                       3,735.42 

Income Tax expense:

(1) Current tax                            2,650.00                            696.00 

(2) Mat Credit Entitlement                                      -                                     -   

(2) Deferred tax                                      -   

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations    (VII-VIII)                           7,692.41                       3,039.42 

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations                                      -                                     -   

XI Tax expenses of discontinued operations                                      -                                     -   

XII Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax)         (X-XI)                                      -                                     -   

XIII Profit/(loss) for the period                                         (IX+XII)                           7,692.41                       3,039.42 

Other Comprehensive Income

 A. (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                      -                                     -   

(ii)  lncome tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                                      -                                     -   

 B. (i) Items that will not be reclassifled to proflt or loss                                      -                                     -   

(ii)  Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified  to profit or loss                                      -                                     -   

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XIII+XIV)Comprising Profit/ (Loss) 
and Other.comprehensive Income for the period )                           7,692.41                       3,039.42 

Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation):

(1) Basic                               153.85                              60.79 

(2) Diluted                               153.85                              60.79 

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):

(1) Basic                                      -                                     -   

(2) Diluted                                      -                                     -   

Earning per equity share (for discontinued & continuing operation)

(1)Basic                                      -                                     -   

(2) Diluted                                       -                                     -   

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For, J SINGH & ASSOCIATES On Behalf of Board of Director

Chartered Accountants DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD

Firm Regd. No 110266W CIN - U51900GJ2014PLC081004

CA Amitkumar Joshi Chintan Nayan bhai Rajyagura Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru

Partner Director Director

M.N. 120022 DIN - 08091654 DIN - 08997548

UDIN: 22120022AKQDQH7864

Alpaben Bhabubhai Thummar Foram Ajmeri

CFO Company Secretary

Date: 09/06/2022 Date: 09/06/2022

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
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 (Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

VIII 12



(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise state

6A. Equity Share Capital

6B.Other Equity

Capital Reserve Securities 
Premium 

Amalgamation  
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Fair Valuation 
for Equity 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period -                -                           -                -                -                3,032.02         -             3,032.02    

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Restated balance at the begining of the reporting period -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Total comprehensive Income for the year -                -                           -                -                -                7,692.41         -             7,692.41    

Dividends -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Transfer to retained earnings -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Fair Value Measurement -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Any other change -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Balance at the end of the reporting  period -                -                           -                -                -                8,424.44         -             8,424.44    

0

Statment of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March 2021

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise state

6C Equity Share Capital

6D.Other Equity

Capital Reserve
Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Amalgamation  
Reserve

Retained 
Earning

Fair Valuation 
for Equity 

Instrument 
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Restated balance at the begining of the reporting period -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Total comprehensive Income for the year -                -                           -                -                -                3,032.02         -             3,032.02    

Dividends -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Transfer to retained earnings -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Fair Value Measurement -             -            

Any other change -                -                           -                -                -                -                -             -            

Balance at the end of the reporting  period -                -                           -                -                -                3,032.02         -             3,032.02    

Share 
application on 

money pending 
allotment

Equity component of 
compound financial 

instrument

Reserve and Surplus
Total

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 50.00                                                                                                  

Changes in equity share capital during the year -                                                                                                      

Balance at the end of the  reporting period 50.00                                                                                                  

Changes in equity share capital during the year 990.00                                                                                                

Balance at the end of the  reporting period 1,040.00                                                                                            

Share 
application on 

money pending 
allotment

Equity component of 
compound financial 

instrument

Reserve and Surplus
Total

STATMENT  OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD
CIN :U51900GJ2014PLC081004

Statment of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31st March, 2022

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 50.00                                                                                                  



Rs. Rs.
PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21

Profit /( Loss ) before tax 1,03,42,414                                     37,35,422                                              

A. CASH FLOW  FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

     Adjustment for:
     Depreciation
     Preliminary Exp
     Finance Cost 1,171                                            -                                                          

     Interest Income -                                                -                                                          

     Dividend Income -                                                -                                                    
     Profit on sale of Fixed Assets -                                                -                                                    
     Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets -                                                -                                                          

      Operating Profit before Working Capital changes.. 1,03,43,585                                     37,35,422                                              

     Change in Working Capital :

    Trade and other Receivables (7,00,38,069)                                    7,67,69,790                                          

     Inventories. (23,09,934)                                       18,60,617                                              

     Trade Payables and other Payable 7,17,96,003                                     (7,47,56,606)                                         

    Cash generated from operation.. 97,91,585                                     76,09,223                                         
    Direct Taxes Paid.. -                                                     -                                                          

    NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 97,91,585                                     76,09,223                                         

B.  CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
     Purchase of Fixed Assets. 7,23,769                                       -                                                          

     Proceeds  from sale of assets. -                                                -                                                          

     Investment -                                                -                                                    
     Interest Income -                                                -                                                          

     Dividend Income -                                                -                                                    
    Net Gain on sale of share 
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES(B) 7,23,769                                       -                                                    

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
     Proceeds from Share Capital 1,09,00,000                                  -                                                    
     Proceeds from Share Premium 1,14,56,461                                  -                                                    
     Proceeds from Secured Loans -                                                     -                                                          

     Repayment of Unsecured Loans -                                                     (76,70,079)                                             

     Finance Cost (1,171)                                           -                                                    

    NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES ( C ) 2,23,55,290                                  (76,70,079)                                        

DHYANI ENTERPRISE PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022



     NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,28,70,644                                     (60,856)                                                  

    [ A +B+C]
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 65,932                                              1,26,787                                                

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 1,64,68,288                                     65,932                                                    

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For, J SINGH & ASSOCIATES On Behalf of Board of Director

Chartered Accountants DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD

Firm Regd. No 110266W CIN - U51900GJ2014PLC081004

CA Amitkumar Joshi

Chintan Rajyaguru Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru

Partner Director Director

M.N. 120022 DIN - 08091654 DIN - 08997548

UDIN: 22120022AKQDQH7864
Alpaben Bhabubhai Thummar Foram Ajmeri

CFO Company Secretary

Date: 09/06/2022 Date: 09/06/2022
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad



DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD
CIN - U51900GJ2014PTC081004

1 Notes Forming Part Of The Financial Statements As On 31st March, 2022

A

B

C Use of Estimates

D Revenue Recognition
a)

b) Revenue from work contact is recongnized based on RA Bills certified by the authority.
c) Interest Income is accounted on an accrual basis.
E Property, Plant & Equipments

a) Tangible

F Depreciation :

a) Tangible Assets

b)

G Investments:

a)

b) Investments being long term are stated at cost. No provision against diminution in the value of investments is made in case
diminution is considered temporary as per criteria laid down by the Management.

Corporate Information

Dhyani Enterprise Private Limited is a private Limited company incorporated on 9th October, 2014 under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 having registered office at 420, Times Sqaure Arcade, Thaltej Shilaj Road, Ahmedabad Gujarat 380059. The 
Company engaged in trading business of comodities, Vitrified Tiles and Ceramic items, security investment and trading ,

      
Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The accounts are prepared as per historical cost convention on going concern basis and recognising income and expenditure on
accrual basis except otherwise stated. The mandatory applicable accounting standards in India and provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 have been followed in preparation of these financial statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the
Company and are consistent with those used in the previous year.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when goods are dispatched from the factory and reward in respect of ownership of the
goods are transferred to the customer.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Cost comprises cost of acquisition, cost of improvements, borrowing cost and any
attributable cost of bringing the assets to the condition for its intended use. Cost also includes direct expenses incurred upto the date 
of capitalisation/ commissioning.

Depreciation on FA if there be, is provided on the Written Down Value Method, at the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the
Companies Act, 2013. 

Depreciation on fixed assets acquired/ disposed off during the year is provided on pro-data basis with reference to the date of
addition/disposal.

Investments, which are readily realisable and intended to be held for not more than one year from the date on which such
investments are made, are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as long-term investments.



H Inventories :

a)

b)

I Employees Benefits :

a)

b) Termination benefits are recognised as an expenses as and when incurred/ paid by the Company.

J Taxes on Income :

a) Current Tax

b)

K Preliminary Expenses

L Contingent Liabilities

M Prior period and Extra Ordinary Items

Preliminary expenditure is amortized over a period of five years commencing from the year of commencement of commercial
production.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements

Material events accruing after the Balance Sheet date are taken into cognizance. These items and changes in accounting policies, if
material, are separately disclosed wherever required. The changes in accounting policies are generally made only where so required
by statutes or standards or by compulsion of convenience. 

Inventories are taken as per physical verification conducted by the management.

Trading Goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value.

Short term benefits are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account of the year in which the related service is rendered.

Current Tax is determined as the amount of tax payable on taxable income for the year as per the provisions of Income Tax Act,
1961.

Deferred Tax Provision:
Deferred tax is recognised on timing differences between the accounting income and the taxable income for the year, and quantified
using the tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 



(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)
 

Note 3 : Financial Assets

3(a) Investments - Non-Current

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Financial Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares (Long Term, at FVIOCI, fully paid up ) 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                -                

3(b) Loan- Non-Current

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Other Loans
Loan Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk -                 -                 
Less: Provision for Doubtful Loan# -                 -                 

-                -                

3(c) Trade Receivables

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
1,08,827         60,679            

Trade Receivables which has significant increase in Credit Risk -                 -                 
Less : Provision for Bad Debt# -                 -                 

1,08,826.74  60,678.83     

Trade Receivables ageing schedule
As at 31st March, 2022

 Less than 6 
months 

 6 months -
1 year 

 1-2
years 

 2-3
years 

 More than 3 
years  Total 

 Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good -                 1,08,827         -                 -                 -                 1,08,826.74    

Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant
increase in credit risk -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

Less: Provision for Bad Debt -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
1,08,826.74  

As at 31st March, 2021

 Less than 6 
months 

 6 months -
1 year 

 1-2
years 

 2-3
years 

 More than 3 
years  Total 

 Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 
increase in credit risk -                 60,679            -                 -                 -                 60,678.83       

Less: Provision for Bad Debt -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
60,678.83     

3(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
16,467.06       19.41              

Cash on Hand 1.23               46.53              
16,468.29     65.93            

 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Total Trade Receivables 

Balance with banks

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total (Equity Instruments)

Non-current Loan Receivables

Trade Receivable considered good - Secured

Total Trade Receivables

Particulars
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Total Trade Receivables 

Investment in Equity Instruments



Note 4 : Deferred Tax Assets / (Liabilities)

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Opening Balance -                 -                 
Add : Generated -                 -                 
Less : Reversed -                 -                 
Closing Balance -                -                

Deferred Tax Asset
Opening Balance -                 -                 
Add : Generated -                 -                 
Less : Reversed -                 -                 
Closing Balance -                -                

NOTE  - 12
Other Non Current Assets
CST/VAT Deposits 45.00              45.00              
Security Deposit 264.80            -                 
Rent Deposit 36.00              20.00              

345.80          65.00            

NOTE  - 13
Inventories
Trading Stock 2,309.93         -                 

2,309.93       -                

NOTE  - 12
Financial assets - Current : Investments

-                -                
NOTE  - 13

 Financial assets - Current : Trade receivables

-                -                

NOTE  - 7

  Financial assets - Current : Loans
( Unsecured , Considered good ) 
Loans (to bodies corporate)
Loans (to others) -                
Income Tax Refund Receivable -                

-                

Note 5 : Other Current Assets

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Balance with Government Authorities 721.29            9.32               
Advance to Suppliers & Others 21,709.45       2,945.33         
Others

22,430.74     2,954.65       
NOTE  - 18
Current Tax Asset (Net)

-                -                
NOTE  - 19
Other Current Asset

Deferred tax Asset / (Liabilities) (Net)

Total Other Current Assets



(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note 6 : Equity Share Capital and Other Equity.

6(a) Equity Share Capital

Authorised equity share capital :
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 500.00            500.00            
80,000 (80,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 800.00            -                 
9,10,000 (9,10,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 9,100.00         -                 
As at 31 March 2022 10,400.00       500.00            

(i) Issued , Subscribed and Paidup :
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 10,400.00       500.00            

As at 31 March 2022 10,400.00       500.00            

Terms and rights attached to equity shares :

(ii) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

 Number of 
Shares % Holding  Number of 

Shares % Holding

-              -              
42,000         84.00% 42,000         84.00%

-              -              
8,000           9.76% 8,000           9.76%

6(b) Reserves and Surplus
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Capital Reserve -                 -                 
Amalgamation  Reserve -                 -                 
Securities Premium -                 -                 
Retained Earnings 8,424.44         3,039.42         
Fair Valuation of Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income -                 -                 
Total Reserves and Surplus 8,424.44       3,039.42       

(i) Capital Reserve
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening Balance -                 -                 
Add : Addition During the year -                 -                 
Closing Balance -                -                

(ii) Amalgamation  Reserve
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening Balance -                -                
Add : Addition  During the year -                -                
Closing Balance -                -                

(iii) Retained Earnings
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening Balance 3,039.42         -                 
Net Profit / (Loss) for the period 7,692.41         3,039.42         
Closing Balance 10,731.84     3,039.42       

(iv)Fair Valuation of Equity Instrument through Other Comprehensive Income (Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise s
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Opening Balance -                 -                 
Net Profit / (Loss) for the period -                 -                 
Closing Balance -                -                

NOTE  - 6(c)
  Financial liabilities - Non current : Borrowings

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Other loans
Unsecured, considered good -                 -                 

-                -                

NOTE  - 6(d)
Provision- Non Currents 

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Provision of Income Tax 2,786.00         696.00            

2,786.00       696.00          

Total Borrowings

Total Provision

As per the records of the Company, including its Register of Members and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the 
above shareholders represents legal ownership of shares.

The Company has only one class of equity share having par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of Equity share is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all 
                 

Particulars
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

(EQ. SH. OF RS 10/- EACH FULLY PAID UP) 
Mr. Kiritbhai Patel
Mr. Shatrugna Patel
Mr. Chintan Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru
Mrs. Ilaben Nayanbhai Rajyaguru



NOTE  - 17
  Financial liabilities - Non current : Borrowings

NOTE  - 17
  Financial liabilities - Non current : Trade Payable

NOTE  - 17
  Financial liabilities - Non current : Others 

NOTE  - 17
 Non current provisions

NOTE  - 18
OTHER -NON CURRENT LIABILITY

NOTE  - 18
1         Financial liabilities - Current: Borrowings

NOTE  - 18
1         Financial liabilities - Current : Trade payables

NOTE  - 18
1         Financial liabilities - Current : Other financial liabilities

7(a) Trade Payables

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Due to Creditors other than micro and small enterprises 46,128.13       57,884.94       
46,128.13     57,884.94     

Trade Payable ageing schedule
As at 31st March, 2022

 Less than 6 
months 

 6 months -
1 year 

 1-2
years 

 2-3
years 

 More than 3 
years  Total 

Due to Creditors other than micro and small enterprises -                 46,128            -                 -                 -                 46,128.13       
46,128.13     

As at 31st March, 2021

 Less than 6 
months 

 6 months -
1 year 

 1-2
years 

 2-3
years 

 More than 3 
years  Total 

Due to Creditors other than micro and small enterprises -                 57,885            -                 -                 -                 57,884.94       
57,884.94     

Trade Payable (Unsecured, Considered Good)
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Total Trade Payable 

Trade Payables (Unsecured, Considered Good)

Total Trade Payables

Trade Payable (Unsecured, Considered Good)
 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

 Total Trade Payable 



Note 7 (b): Other Current Liabilities.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Liablities for Expenses -                 -                 
Salary Payable -                 -                 
Other Payable -                 1,620.00         
Statutory Dues -                 

-Duties & Taxes (186.12)          31.45              
Advance from Customer 83,552.81       -                 
Total Other Current Liabilities 83,366.70     1,651.45       

Note 8 : Revenue from Operation.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Sales 2,02,582.97    1,30,524.94    
Other Operating revenue -                 15,228.00       
Total Revenue from Operation 2,02,582.97  1,45,752.94  

Note 9 : Other Income.

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Net Profit on commodity trading 9,271.69         400.00            
Commission Received -                 4,980.60         
Interest Income 1,183.46         -                 
Other Income 4,983.48         -                 
Total Other Income 15,438.62     5,380.60       

Note 10 : Expenses.

10(a) Employee Benefit Expenses

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Salary 937.40            132.00            
Directors Remuneration 1,800.00         1,500.00         
Total Employee Benefit Expenses 2,737.40       1,632.00       

10(b) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Depreciation -                 -                 
Total Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses -                -                



(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Note 11 : Other Expenses

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Rent 543.84            132.00            

Accounting Charges -                 216.00            
Advertisement Expense 238.23            -                 
Audit Fees 305.00            125.00            
Bad Debts 83.03              -                 
Conveyance Exp -                 56.45              
Commission & Brokrage Exp. 12.00              -                 
Consultancy Charges 250.60            80.00              
Bank Charges 4.97               5.15               
Electricity / Fuel Expenses 49.35              -                 
Insurance Expense 18.34              -                 
Rounded off 12.34              0.00               
Legal & Professional Fees 230.00            120.00            
Labour Charges 650.65            -                 
Municipal Tax 56.12              -                 
Office Expense 109.04            -                 
Other Misc Exp 38.31              -                 
Stationery & Printing Expense 35.59              -                 
Repairs & Maintenance 118.51            -                 
Travelling Expense 564.53            -                 
Total Other Expenses 3,320.45       734.60          

Note 12 : Income Tax Expenses

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
(a) Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax
Current tax on profit for the year 2,650.00         696.00            
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods -                 -                 
Total Current Tax Expenses 2,650.00         696.00            

Deferred Tax
Decrease (Increase) in deferred tax assets -                 -                 
(Decrease) Increase in deferred tax liabilities -                 -                 
Total deferred tax expenses (benefit) -                 -                 
Income Tax Expenses 2,650.00         696.00            

Income tax expenses is attributable to :
Profit from continuing operations 2,650.00         696.00            
Profit from discontinuing operations -                 -                 

2,650.00         696.00            

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

 Note 13 : Related party transactions.

13(a) : Subsidiaries

31.03.2022 31.03.2021
Associates None None
Subsidiaries None None

13(c) : Transaction with Related Parties

31.03.2022 31.03.2021

 Chintan Rajyaguru  Directors 
 Remuneration 

 Managing 
Director 120.00            120.00            

 Manish Bhoot Salary  Company 
Secretary 15.00              -                 

 Lakshman Prasad Shaw                             Salary  Company 
Secretary 385.00            350.00            

Note 14 : Earning Per Share.
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

76,92,414       30,39,422       
50,000            50,000            

153.848          60.788            
10                  10                  

Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (A)
weighted Average number of equity shares outstanding (B)

 Basic and Diluted Earnings per share  (Rs)[A/B]
 Face value per equity share  (Rs)



Note -2
Property, Plant and Equipments

As at 31.03.2022
Description

As at As at Upto Upto As at As at
01.04.2021 Addition Deletion 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2022 31.03.2021

Tangible assets

Computer -             193.77    -        193.77        -             -    -             193.77                    -             

Furniture -             530.00    -        530.00        -             -    -             530.00                    -             

Total -             723.77   -       723.77       -             -   -             723.77                   -             

For the
year

DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ ELIMITED
NOTE FORMING PART OF THE BALANCE SHEET  & STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR  ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

(Amount in Rs.Thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block



Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

NOTE  -  21

1 Auditors Remuneration 2021-22 2020-21
Audit fees 305                            125                           

2 Retirement Benefits
a Gratuity

b Leave Encashment

3 Disclosure of Related parties/ Related parties transactions
a Name Relationship

Shatrugna Patel
Kiritkumar Patel
Nayanbhai Rajyaguru Director

b Transactions with related parties Particulars of transaction 2021-22 2020-21
Interest 1,171                         -                            

Total 1,171                         -                           
4
a

5 Earning Per Share 2021-22 2020-21
a 50,000                       50,000                       
b 76,92,414                   30,39,422                  
c Face value of the Shares 10                              10                             
d Earning Per Share 153.85                       60.79                         

6 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

7 Contingent Liabilities

8

9

The Balances of Secured Loans, Unsecured Loans, Sundry Debtors, Sundry Creditors and Loans and Advances
are stated at book value subject to confirmation from respective parties.

Notes required as per general instructions for preparation of Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Statement as per
revised Schedule III are given to the extent they are applicable to the Company.

Considering the Organisation structure and nature of products, the Company's business is considered as a Single
Segments.

Weighted Average Number of Shares at the beginning and end 
Net Profit after Tax available for Equity Shareholders

It is not known or ascertainable as to which suppliers are micro, small and medium units, therefore for want of
 this information, we are of the belief that no interest has become payable and  paid under the interest on
delayed  payment   to micro, small and medium units under MSMED Act, 2006.

As informed to us by the management, the contingent liabilities as on 31st March, 2021 were NIL (Previous 
year NIL).

Segment Reporting

DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD

The Company has not made provision of gratuity as the same is accounted for on payment basis.

The Company has not made provision of leave encashment as the same is accounted for on payment basis.

Ex- Director
Ex- Director



10

*As per our report attached

For, J SINGH & ASSOCIATES On Behalf of Board of Director
Chartered Accountants DHYAANI TILE AND MARBLEZ LTD
Firm Regd. No 110266W CIN - U51900GJ2014PTC081004

Nayanbhai Rajyaguru

Director
DIN - 08997548

CA Amitkumar Joshi Partner
M.N. 120022 
UDIN: 22120022AKQDQH7864

Foram Ajmeri

CFO Company Secretary

Date: 09/06/2022 Date: 09/06/2022
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Director

The Company previous years figures have been regrouped wherever need regrouping.

Signatories to Notes 1 to 20

Chintan Nayan Bhai Rajyaguru

Alpaben Bhabubhai Thummar

DIN - 08091654
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